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1 THE CHAI R
(I ntroductory Remarks)

PROCEEDI NGS JUNE 12, 2008, 3:00 P.M

THE CHAI R: So good afternoon, wel conme.
l'd first of all, 1'd like to thank you for taking the
time to be with us this afternoon. It's a pleasure to

be here in Cranbrook. This is a public hearing on
proposed amendnents to the Occupational Health and
Saf ety Regul ati on.

And nmy first duty is to introduce
oursel ves. So my name is Roberta Ellis and I'mthe
Chair of the panel and Vice-President of the Policy and
Research Division for the Wirkers' Conpensati on Board.
And on my left is Anne Burch who is the Vice-Chair and
the Director of Prevention Policy and Regul ati on Revi ew.
And on my right is M. Ed Bates, General Counsel, and
Secretary to WorkSaf eBC.

And |I'"m going to introduce Lynn Lee, she's
the court reporter who's working with us today and she's
t aki ng verbatim notes of the public hearing process.
This is the record that assists the Board of Directors
of WorkSafeBC to make their decisions and after the
deci sions are made, all of the material is made public.
We'll put it up on our website.

So the purpose of this public hearing is
to provide input to amendnents to the Occupati onal

Heal th and Safety Regulation. And if you can just bear
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2 THE CHAI R
(I ntroductory Remarks)

with me, | want to read into the record the sections
that we're proposing amendments to:

Part 1, Definitions; and Part 4, General
Conditions - relating to aval anches. Part 4, General
Conditions - relating to environmental tobacco smoke.
Part 5, Chem cal Agents and Bi ol ogical Agents - relating
to designation of substances. Part 14, Cranes and
Hoists - relating to operator's duties. Part 17,
Transportation of Workers - relating to seating
requi rements and seatbelts in vehicles used to transport
wor ker s. Part 20, Construction, Excavation and
Denmolition; and Part 22, Underground workings - fills,
stockpiles and professional certifications. Part 22,
Under ground Workings - relating to the accomodati on of
tunnel boring and cut and cover excavation methods. And
Part 23, Ol and Gas - relating to snubbing, emergency
escape systens, riding hoisting equipment and
m scel | aneous itens.

The proposed amendments to Parts 1 and 4
relating to aval anches, and Parts 20 and 22 relating to
fills and stockpiles, were taken to the 2007 public
hearings. Stakehol ders had asked for more consultation
and | just want to thank everybody who took the tine to
wor k on those anmendments. They were advised and they

are being returned to this public hearing.
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3 THE CHAI R
(I ntroductory Remarks)

St akehol ders were advised of the 2008
proposed amendnments and its associ ated expl anatory
not es.

The changes were placed on the WrkSaf eBC
website, sent to over 3500 stakehol ders via E-News,
advertised in the BC Gazette and 17 newspapers, and we
al so contacted representatives of industry associ ations
and interest groups to encourage their response.

Copi es of the proposed anmendnents are
avail able at the front with Lel ey Neudorf, our
assi stant.

So the only other thing I want to make
people aware of is if you want to | eave witten materi al
with us, the deadline is Friday, June 13 -- that's this
Friday -- 2008, at 4:30 p.m

So this is the formal consultation
process. Once this is conplete and we finish tonight
here in Cranbrook, our Board of Directors will have
access to all of the subm ssions that we received on al

of the proposed regul atory amendments.

And so first of all, it's nmy pleasure to
-- is it -- I"mjust wondering, sir, are you first, sir?

MR. SEDROVI C: No, |'m second.

THE CHAI R: Are you El eanor?

MS. McCAUGHEY: Yes.
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4 ELEANOR McCAUGHEY
(Heal th Sci ences Assn. O BC)

THE CHAI R: El eanor McCaughey, Health
Sci ences Association of BC, is going to speak to Part 5,
whi ch i s Designation of Substances. And thanks very
much, El eanor, for taking the time to cone today.

PRESENTATI ON BY ELEANOR McCAUGHEY - REPRESENTI NG HEALTH

SClI ENCES ASSOCI ATI ON OF B. C.

MS. McCAUGHEY: Thank you for the
opportunity.

The expl anatory note to the proposed Part
5 amendment states that the ACGIH is no | onger
identifying the reproductive or sensitization effects of
substances in their annual publication of the Threshold
Limt Values booklet. These effects are not the basis
for establishing TLV. Threshold Limt Values are
devel oped to provide exposure limts to substances that
woul d be considered safe for nost workers. Desi gnat ed
subst ances such as reproductive toxins and sensitizers
shoul d not be considered to have any safety |evels.

The proposed amendnment that continues to
rely sole on the ACGIH Iist of reproductive toxins and
sensitizers is inappropriate and does not provide
wor kers with adequate protection. The ACGIH adm ts that
their list of designated substances is out of date and
t hey are not prepared to put the resources in to the

keeping the list current.
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5 ELEANOR McCAUGHEY

(Heal th Sciences Assn. O

BC)

Continued reliance upon the ACGIH |Iist of

designations, a source of information which is limted

and provides mnimal protection, is unacceptable. | t

i's

estimated that 15 to 20 per cent of the workforce in BC

could be affected by reproductive toxins. These worke
come froma wi de cross-section of workplaces and those
who are young and of reproductive age will be at
greatest risk.

Does the WCB really want to publicly
declare that they are not willing to provide this grou
of vul nerabl e workers and their children with the
hi ghest | evel of protection?

The pre-consultation meeting with | abour
and empl oyer representatives were prepared to extend
greater protection to these workers by agreeing on a
recommendation to add to Section 5.57, Item (e), that
reads: Classified under WHM S CPR 53 or 55 as a
devel opmental or reproductive toxin subdivision A or
Division 2 of class D - Poisonous and Infectious
mat eri al .

WHM S is the recognized system in Canada
and establishes the |egal requirements for the
identification of hazardous substances. Due to the
requi rements of the MSDS, the WHM S |i st nust be kept

to date. Therefore, the WHM S system is a nuch nore
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6 ELEANOR McCAUGHEY
(Heal th Sci ences Assn. O BC)

reliable source of information on reproductive toxins
and sensitizers.

Adopting the WHM S |i st of reproductive
toxins and sensitizers will provide consistency and
avoi d confusion at workplaces when enmpl oyees -- sorry --
when enpl oyers and workers notice a discrepancy between
the ACGIH Iist and the required WHM S MSDS r ef erences.

Recommendati on: The federation strongly
urges the WCB to adopt the recommendati on of the
pre-consultation meeting to add to Section 5.57, Item
(e), as read earlier. Wuld you like ne to re-read --

THE CHAI R: No, we have it on the
record, that's fine.

MS. McCAUGHEY: And just as a worker in
heal t hcare, a product of the seventies, that's when
began my work as a |l ab technol ogist, we were working in
poorly ventilated areas with open xylene, benzenes, you
know, at our exposure all the time. And | am t hankf ul
for Workers' Comp for putting -- being diligent and
putting safeguards in place. | would like to reiterate
that there are no safe |levels for these toxins and that
we woul d hope that Workers' Conpensation would be
diligent in hearing our proposal.

THE CHAI R: Thanks, Eleanor. And | have

been clarifying this as we've gone along because the

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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7 ELEANOR McCAUGHEY
(Heal th Sci ences Assn. O BC)

reason that we moved to make this amendment is because
we were also concerned that the ACG H had indicated that
they were stopping the recording of the existing |ists.
And |I'm just clarifying, it's not that you are objecting
to maintaining the protections that are there right now,
it's that they don't go far enough and that you would
like to see the additional substances that WHM S
identified included. Because we wouldn't like to | ose
the protection that we already have.

MS. Mc CAUGHEY: But we need to continue
on in that vein.

THE CHAI R: That's exactly -- thank you
very much. And thank you for com ng here today. Much
appreci at ed.

Sorry, sir, you're M. Kim Sedrovic?

MR. SEDROVI C: Yes.
THE CHAI R: Hell o, Mr. Sedrovic.
MR. SEDROVI C: Fernie W I derness

Advent ures.

PRESENTATI ON BY KI M SEDROVI C - OWNER/ OPERATOR OF FERNI E

W LDERNESS ADVENTURES:

THE CHAI R: And you're going to talk to
us about Parts 1 and 4, Aval anches?
MR. SEDROQOVI C: Yes, bear with me. My

concern is with the Guide Certification part.
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8 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

THE CHAI R: Yes.

MR. SEDROVI C: Because there is no
sector standards as of now. And being a famly
busi ness, it's been around for a long time, we started

in 1986, we've adapted our own training prograns and

done our own training without -- and |I don't know which
way the -- it's going to be accepted.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: Whet her they're going to

adopt something from sonebody el se or accept new

standards, | just don't know where ny business stands
with -- with that issue with the Guide Certifications.
THE CHAI R: Okay. So, umm, ny

understanding is that within the changes that we've made
to this set of proposals, umm --

MR. SEDROVI C: There is no sector
standards as of yet.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght, but that the -- am/|
-- correct me if I"'mwong, sir -- but nmy understanding
was that the Canadi an Aval anche Associ ati on has
publi shed gui delines as the standard. Do they have a
standard or a guideline for what you're describing?

MR. SEDROVI C: No, they re working on
that. That is not put forth. And if they adopt a

standard that says you have to be an ACMG gui de trained,

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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Kl v SEDROVI C
e W/ derness Adventures)

if they adopt that, that |eaves my company out in |imbo.

Because we' ve done our own training fo
years --

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: -- wit
t hey just adopt sonebody el se and say,

everybody has to be -- or for, say, He

r over the

h our own. So if
okay, now,

| i Cat Canada has

probably 80 per cent of the heli-ski and cat-ski

operations menbers which we are not be
we run with our own trained guides.
THE CHAI R: Ri ght .
MR. SEDROVI C: And we

it for many, many years without incide

cause we do not --

have been doi ng

nts. And | can

see a |lot of financial burden on extra training. And is

there going to be a time frame to |et
get up to that, like --

THE CHAI R: Ri ght . So
t hings, just to make you aware in any
Board of Directors considers any propo
t he regul ations, they're also going to

an effective date for that regul ation.

somebody |i ke me

one of the
case, i s when the
sed amendments to

take into account

So while we would be reporting back to our

Board of Directors in September, there
where, even if these regul ations were

are right now, sir, there would still

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
Cranbrook, BC ~ Ph: 250-489-1800 ~ Fax: 250-489-1873
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10 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

anal ysis period and a deposit period that would -- that
t he soonest they would come into effect would be January
or February of next year, of '009.

Now, it would be fairly unusual for us to
i ntroduce something like this right in the m ddle of
your season, which is also not a reasonable time for the
i ndustry to adopt to the changes. So we've had
proposals from umm a number of organizations that
represent the ski industry to say that they're
recommendi ng that the soonest effective date could be
fall of '09 so that everybody has time to do the work
that's necessary.

But also in your case, if | understand
your concern, sir, is to make sure that you don't |ose
the training and the work that you've already done which

may, in fact, be equival ent.

MR. SEDROVI C: Yeah, | would want
credit for --

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: -- for -- and it's

probably unusual to nmost conpanies, is because we do
have | ong-time enpl oyees. Most people in the ski

i ndustry nove around and they do different, you know,
wor k here. But what | have chose is people that have

wor ked in Fernie and own homes and | have enpl oyees from

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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11 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

ei ght years -- my main guides are from eight years to 10
years and, you know, | have enpl oyees up to 17 years
with me.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: And | don't want to be
just, "Okay, now | gotta go hire somebody el se because"
-- and | have all this experience that |'ve paid for and
t he training. | want my training to be accepted as part
of -- you know, nmy guides to be certified into it

because of their |ongevity and the tinme.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght. And so really what
you' re suggesting is that where there are operators
whose training progranms could be assessed to be of
equi val ent - -

MR. SEDROQOVI C: Yes.

THE CHAI R: -- or a simlar standard to
t he Canadi an Aval anche Associ ation training and
gui delines, what you're asking is there been an
opportunity for that to be grandfathered?

MR. SEDROVI C: Our gui des are al
trained to the same standard of the aval anche program as
the CAA. That is not where the issue lies. And from
what | understand of reading this new plan, there's
going to be more courses that are built for the

i ndustry --
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12 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: -- which we're all for.
You know, we're getting our -- it's the Guide Standard
I ssue --

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. SEDROVI C: -- is where | fall. And
| hope |I'm not repeating nyself. | gotta -- | gotta --

this point has to be across because it's huge to ny
busi ness.

THE CHAI R: Okay. So coul d you just
take a little time, sir, and tell us a little bit about
what the -- from your perspective, what the Guide
Standard is about, what's in the Guide Standard and how
t hat works right now?

MR. SEDROVI C: Well, the whole Guide
Standard thing, the only -- there was two organi zations
out there. There was the ACMG Gui de, the Mountain
Gui de, and the Canadi an Ski Gui de Associ ation that
hasn't really got too nmuch recognition in the whole
thing. So throughout, | didn't see the need to hire
full mountain guides for nmy terrain and my application
over the past years. So |I've devel oped my own training
program and dealt with it that way.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROQOVI C: And so there's only two

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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13 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

organi zations out there that sort of have some
recognition. ACMG gui des --

THE CHAI R: Yes.

MR. SEDROVI C: -- are recogni zed nore.
The mountain guides that M ke Quigley started, it never
did take off. It's still out there and |I think there's
peopl e that want to get that accepted in now.

THE CHAI R: Um hmm

MR. SEDROVI C: But what I'm-- |I'm
going to what my company has done and the years of ny

people with 10 years --

THE CHAI R: Yeah.

MR. SEDROVI C: -- in the same terrain
and stuff, they need to be -- | don't -- call it
grandfathering, call it something, they need to be

accepted into a certain |evel.

THE CHAI R: That's a good point when you
i ntroduce a standard. So within the guiding standard or
t he gui ding approach that you have right now --

MR. SEDROQOVI C: Yes.

THE CHAI R: -- is there an aval anche

assessnment and safety program included in that?

MR. SEDROVI C: In m ne, yes.
THE CHAI R: Yes. There is?
MR. SEDROVI C: We have all that. But

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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14 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

we want to be able to use it and use the same peopl e.
We don't want to be --

THE CHAI R: Having to use -- having to
re -- no, that's a real -- actually, that's a very
i mportant point and, umm one that |'m very glad that
you've rai sed because, obviously, whenever you introduce
a standard for an industry --

MR. SEDROVI C: Because there never has
been a standard for the industry, right? There hasn't
been. Hel i Cat Canada was fornmed and it was formed for
advertising and group and getting people together. So

that was the only thing that was out there.

THE CHAI R: Okay, that's a really good
poi nt .

MR. SEDROQOVI C: But it didn't really
pertain to us.

THE CHAI R: Yeah.

MR. SEDROVI C: And one main reason was

our terrain is totally different that most heli-ski
operations. W don't have big bowls. This is a Ma and
Pa show where the terrain is not the extreme terrain, I
mean, we treat it as it is and we have our aval anche

pl ans, we have everything in place. And we have been
running the ski end of it for 15 years without

i nci dences.
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15 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

THE CHAI R: So your W | derness
Adventures Tours would involve both skiing and --

MR. SEDROVI C: WIldlife view ng.

THE CHAI R: So a range of activities
t hat people would be involved in?

MR. SEDROQOVI C: Yes.

THE CHAI R: Well, you know, really, sir
you raise a really good point because, clearly, there
has to be some thought given to folks such as yourself
who put the effort into establishing standards for the
safety of your -- obviously your customers but also your
wor kers and maki ng sure that we accomwodate that as we
move towards -- which I think you' re saying you wel conme

an industry standard but --

MR. SEDROVI C: Oh, | do but the years
of investment that | have with nmy conpany and the people
that work for me that are | ocal that have homes, | mean,

they're my main people. They're the people | depend on.

THE CHAI R: You' ve invested in them and
they're --

MR. SEDROVI C: What |'ve found with the
ot her guide sectors, if you're trying to hire them
people -- and | did have a few that went through
there -- they were nmore people that wanted experience in

t he mountains. They were working here and gai ning
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16 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

experience and nmoving on, where | wanted just solid
peopl e that wanted to live in the -- a good job in the
ski industry and they worked so -- |'ve ended up now,
and | don't think too many ski operations have people

with the amount of years that worked together.

THE CHAI R: So M. Sedrovic, let's say
that -- so | clearly get -- | think the panel gets what
your concern is. No, that's a very fair point. So say
that -- let's assune the effective date m ght be -- for

this mght be, umm the fall of 2009, so over a year
fromnow -- well, over a year, 18 nonths fromnow -- if
your aval anche assessment and training standard and
program and the training that you're doing needed a
l[ittle bit of fine-tuning to meet that standard to allow
you to, obviously, have the sanme people doing the work
that they're doing for you --

MR. SEDROVI C: Yes.

THE CHAI R: -- 1 guess I'minterested in
your comment about is that timeframe doabl e?

MR. SEDROVI C: | mean, there is --
there is the question of if you were to say "You have to
go and get all your main people certified as ACM
gui des," that's a huge expense that we'd be starting
over fromthe bottom and - -

THE CHAI R: Okay.

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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Kl v SEDROVI C

(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

MR. SEDROVI C: -- 1t just woul

for us.

dn't work

THE CHAI R: So, really, that's what |

m

trying to get at. It's not that you're just concerned

about -- because | want to make sure we clearly

represent your concerns back to our decision-makers.

lt's not just the standard and the effective date, it'

some ability to accept some kind of grandfather
process, qualifications and standards that have
acceptable for --

MR. SEDROVI C: For my gui des.
with the years of what we've done and, | nmean,

not -- | think we m ght have had a couple twi st

I ng

been

S

| mean,

we hav

e

ed knees

over the years, you know, Conpensation -- | mean, we

haven't had an incident, we haven't had an aval
that's killed anybody, we haven't had a whole p
people buried. We're running a small -- if | ¢
call it -- a safe chance for people to get out
mount ai ns - -

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

anche
il e of
ould |

in the

MR. SEDROVI C: -- where an intermedi ate

skier skis with us. Where nost of these outfit
t aki ng hi gher-end people who are | ooking for no
aggressive terrain, we're out there to play and

t he people that are not as good a skiers to get

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
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18 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

t he backcountry; therefore, we don't need the terrain of
ot her operators.

So | think we have to be | ooked at as,
terrain-wi se and for our guiding staff, is how |long they
have been there doing the job and doing it good.

THE CHAI R: Yeah. So, M. Sedrovic, can
| ask you how many people would you enploy in your
busi ness, just approximtely?

MR. SEDROVI C: This gives -- give or
take a couple of enployees, depending on how our
booki ngs are, but in the winter, |ast winter, we hired
11 full-time enpl oyees --

THE CHAI R: So fairly sizable.

MR. SEDROVI C: -- and 15 part-tinme
enpl oyees which our part-time enployees are all from
Fernie that work at the ski hill. And they're al
wor king different shifts so they get -- so they're all
really qualified, trained aval anche people. They're
awesome part-time enpl oyees because, | mean, in ny case,
| Iike to have them on site all the time, their
first-aid that they get at the hill.

We don't get too many wrecks in the
backcountry. W're playing in soft snow and we're not
-- the ski hill, they're hauling people out. The part-

time guys | hire, they deal with five broken legs in a
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19 Kl v SEDROVI C
(Fernie W/ derness Adventures)

day. | mean, they're on the ski resort. They're
awesome enpl oyees for me for part tinme.

So what | do is | have ny main guys that,
you know, |l ead the runs and the tail guides are all the
safety people fromthe hill and it's been a -- we have
been doing that for a ot of years now and it really
wor ks for us.

THE CHAI R: Okay. All right. ' Cause
this -- you know, this particular amendment is just
essentially dealing with the aval anche assessment part
of the program not -- not the rest of them just the

aval anche assessnment.

MR. SEDROVI C: But what it's going to
be who makes -- who they allow and part of it is -- is
are they going to have the guide -- |like, for instance,

umm there's some words that they are trying to change
there, they're either -- it should ve read "or" in the
one sector, and we do -- we do have that, in a sense, we
have that person but we don't have that guide and ful
mount ai n gui de, but we do have the Level 2 forecaster on
site. We have two of them

THE CHAI R: One of the things that m ght
al so be hel pful for us to do, because | think we've
captured exactly what your concern is. The other thing

t hat m ght be hel pful for us to do, aside from having to
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deal with the proposed amendnents to the regul ation and
producing the material for our Board of Directors is it
m ght al so be hel pful for us to have one of our staff
who' s knowl edgeabl e also follow up with you to talk
about what's in your programright now and how big a
problem or challenge this m ght be for you. Because 1'd
like to get a sense of how -- is this really a |arge,
problematic challenge that's going to be very concerning
for operators like yourself or is it manageable? And I
t hink one of the ways we could do that is to follow up
with you separately and have one of our staff meet with
you and | ook at what you have and | ook at what this
proposes and see where that actually gets to.

MR. SEDROVI C: And because of Heli Cat
Canada, we did an assessnment of -- we had an eval uator

come in from Heli Cat Canada.

THE CHAI R: Yes?
MR. SEDROVI C: And | have the
assessment here in front of me that would be -- it's

pretty short, if you would Iike to just |look at it right

now, it would give you a little bit of an insight to

what | could be faced with because --
THE CHAI R: Ri ght .
MR. SEDROVI C: Because they' ve checked

off all the stuff that we were doing but the only thing
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they didn't pass us on was the formal training of our
gui des 'cause they wouldn't accept ny training program

They accepted the ACMG gui de program But if --

THE CHAI R: Why don't you leave it with
us?

MR. SEDROVI C: ls it all right?

THE CHAI R: Yes, absolutely, it's very

hel pful for us to have that.

MR. SEDROVI C: So this fellow was hired
by -- he was a professional that was hired by Heli Cat
Canada to assess our conmpany. | f you just quickly |ook

down, you can see we have passed everything with flying

col ours except --

THE CHAI R: The formal qualifications.
That hel ps.

MR. SEDROVI C: -- the formal
qualifications. And that's exactly what |'m going to be
up agai nst.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. SEDROQOVI C: And what |'m saying is

we woul d have never achieved all of this and run for

this many years so safe without our guides being up to

standard. That's -- that's probably the easy --
THE CHAI R: Al'l right, that's the
easiest way to put it. Well, M. Sedrovic, | really
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want to thank you and I think -- Ms. Sedrovic?
MS. SEDROVI C: Yes?
THE CHAI R: If you want to say a few

wor ds, please feel free but speak into the m crophone
because it's helpful for us to capture it.

MS. SEDROVI C: | just wanted to make a
point that Kim s been saying, umm we haven't been
accepted by the ACMG, we don't have ACMG gui des
certified.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MS. SEDROVI C: And the reason we don't
is because ACMG requires themto be certified in rock-
climbing and ice-clinmbing and that is not relevant to

our busi ness.

MR. SEDROVI C: But they do have a ski
sector part.

MS. SEDROVI C: And the ski sector part
we are pretty much on par with. It's just that we don't

-- our guides are not certified ice-climbing guides,
it's got no relevance to our business.

MR. SEDROQOVI C: That there, what | just
gi ve you, explains --

THE CHAI R: Expl ai ns that. Yeah,
mean, okay, this is a very inportant point you're
raising.
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MR. SEDROVI C: Because how could |
achieve that, right, with that -- all them other things
are right in line? And, | nmean, the fellow that did the

t hi ng, he was awesome, and he told me honestly, he says,
"You know, | send my kids here but | don't think Heli Cat
Canada is going to accept it" because we weren't ACNG.

And if | could give you a little
background on nyself and where the training come in? |
don't --

THE CHAI R: Sure, we're here to |listen.

MR. SEDROVI C: Wel |, because they're
going to say, "Who trained you? Who trained your
people?" And I'm saying "Me." For 25 years, | have
been a backcountry guide in the wilderness hunting,
fishing, and in the backcountry ski industry.

In the early years, | was captain of a
m ne rescue team at one of the m nes out of Fernie where
| was -- | was in -- | was extensively rope-trained,
first-aid-trained, confined space, vehicle extrication
and part of their training program \Where me being the
captain, | would be sent out to courses and then
brought it back and trained my people. So, you know, |
took it on as nmy own training officer with my
qualifications.

Further to that, | have been a firefighter
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with the Fernie Volunteer Firefighters forever and
hel ping with the training and doing the programthere.
And a menmber of the Provincial Emergency Program where
our conpany, in a |lot of cases, is called out to do the
rescue in the backcountry. So, you know, if -- if
there's a problemin the nmountains, mainly even just
knowi ng where to get around, they call on us in a |ot of
cases just to get there and then usually we end up doing
the rescue.

THE CHAI R: Yeah.

MR. SEDROVI C: So that's just sonme
background on ne.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. SEDROVI C: And that's where the
training came in.

MS. SEDROVI C: Now, the guides are also
have their Canadi an Aval anche Associ ation Level --
m ni mum Level 1 as well as the standard first-aid that
we require before we will | ook at anybody.

THE CHAI R: So your guides already have
t hat ?

MR. SEDROVI C: Yeah, oh, yeah, our
gui des already have -- we have the Level 2 forecasters,
we have two of them and we've -- we've hired Level 2

forecasters throughout the whole thing.
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THE CHAI R: Because, really, | think
what | want our staff to |look at is if you | ook at the
definition of "qualified aval anche planner,"” that we're
suggesting --

MR. SEDROVI C: Yes.

THE CHAI R: -- umm basically, it's

saying a person with at [east the mninmum training and
experience to be a planner for active aval anche safety
programs and who's a professional menber of the CAA. | f
your gui des already neet that --

MS. SEDROVI C: Ri ght .

THE CHAI R: | guess what |'m wonder --
and actually, the reason why | think I would |ike staff
to talk to you is it's kind of hard for me to tell
whet her or not you really have a problemwith this
regul ati on. Because - -

MR. SEDROVI C: Well, we do when they
tal k gui de standards.

THE CHAI R: Wel |, except, umm | think
t hat HeliCat -- the people who did the operational
review are tal king about guiding standards. This change
to the regulation is only really focusing on aval anche
assessnment and aval anche planning and aval anche
programm ng.

So what |'d really want to make sure of --
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absolutely sure of, M. and Ms. Sedrovic, is that

you' re not worrying about nothing. That's what | want
to make sure. So, | mean, we don't know enough about
your actual company but if your guides are already CAA
-- thanks, sir. Ri ght . | f your guides are already CAA
trained, as the definition suggests, umm you may not
have a problem

So that's what 1'd like to try and find
out because it's not our intention to make the operating
and the carrying on of your business and your |ivelihood
more difficult. W really just want to focus on the
safety; the safety of the workers in this case. So what
|'d really like to do is have an opportunity for one of
our senior staff people, George Matheson -- he'll be the
person that we contact to contact you -- to take a | ook
at all of your documentation just to make sure that
we're not asking you to worry about nothing.

MS. SEDROVI C: Okay. Well, the other
thing we know that we don't have are these courses that
are just being -- they're just being devel oped by the
CAA and our concern is --

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MS. SEDROVI C: -- once they are on |line
and these new m ni num qualifications come into effect,

how long will it take to run through -- run all these
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peopl e through the courses and --

THE CHAI R: Of course.
MR. SEDROQOVI C: And how expensive?
THE CHAI R: And that's why | think we've

been kind of concerned that we not spring this on people
overni ght, to be honest. You have to give them an
opportunity to figure out what it is they need to do and
to do it.

MR. SEDROVI C: My main guide goes and
sit -- he sat in on this, too, so he -- he's up on it.
And he just said that we needed to be here to make sure
that our situation is right up front so we don't get any
surprises down the road.

THE CHAI R: Well, we often say that the
most interesting part of this public hearing process is
when people who actually have to do the work come and
tell us what the problems and the issues and the
chall enges are, so this is an incredibly useful
conversation for us to have with you.

Now, do you feel that you're fully -- you
have been heard and that we've really taken the time to

under st and?

MR. SEDROVI C: Yes.
THE CHAI R: | think we do. So a couple
of things. | think we' ve clearly understood what your
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concerns are, we have that on the record. Aside from
t hat, and making sure that's factored into the

di scussi on when we go back to our Board of Directors, |
really do want to follow up with you and have someone
work with you offline. Because sometimes, you know, if
it's a great big problem then, you know, you need to
know that, but if it's really just a small issue, you

need to know that, too.

MS. SEDROVI C: Ri ght, that would be
hel pf ul .

THE CHAI R: Thank you very much, M. and
Ms. Sedrovic.

MS. BURCH: Could | just have -- could |
have your tel ephone nunmber and we'll have George

Mat heson call you?

MR. SEDROVI C: 250-423-6704.

THE CHAI R: Thank you, M. Sedrovic.

MR. SEDROVI C: Thank you

THE CHAI R: Thanks very much.

So at this juncture, there being no other
st akehol ders or nmembers of the public who have
regi stered to present at the afternoon session, | am
going to adjourn the proceedings and go off the record.
We will be here for a little longer just in case anybody

el se does want to spend sone time with us this
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afternoon, so we're adjourned in the meanti ne.

( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED)

( PROCEEDI NGS RECONVENED)

THE CHAI R: So now being 4:00 and no
ot her citizens or stakehol ders having either registered
or presented themselves to give input to the public
hearings, we're going to adjourn the hearings and resune
this evening at 7:00.

( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED AT 4:00 P. M)

( PROCEEDI NGS RESUMED AT 7:00 P. M)

THE CHAI R: Hell o and welconme, 1'd I|ike
to thank you for comng to this public hearing. First
order of business is for me to introduce the chair and
t he panel members. | ' m Roberta Ellis, I'"mthe chair of
the panel and I'm the Vice-President of the Policy and
Research Division of WorkSafeBC. This is Anne Burch who
is the Vice-Chair of the Panel and Director of
Prevention Policy and Regul ati on Review. And M. Ed
Bates who i s General Counsel and Secretary to
Wor kSaf eBC.

And I'm also going to introduce Lynn Lee
who is our court reporter today and she's taking
verbatim notes of the public hearing which is the record
t hat assists the Board of Directors of WrkSafeBC in

t heir decision-making, and the recorded notes are made

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
Cranbrook, BC ~ Ph: 250-489-1800 ~ Fax: 250-489-1873




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

30 THE CHAI R
(I ntroductory Remarks)

public after the Board of Directors make deci sions
regardi ng the proposed regul atory changes.

The purpose of the public hearing is to
provi de an opportunity to comment on the amendnents to
t he Occupational Health and Safety Regul ati on.

And for the record, | just I'mtaking a
m nut e because | want to read all of the proposed
changes into the record. Part 1, Definitions; and Part
4, General Conditions - relating to aval anches. Part 4,
General Conditions - relating to environmental tobacco
smoke. Part 5, Chem cal Agents and Bi ol ogical Agents -
relating to designation of substances. Part 14, Cranes
and Hoists - relating to operator's duties. Part 17,
Transportation of Workers - relating to seating
requi rements and seatbelts in vehicles used to transport
wor ker s. Part 20, Construction, Excavation and
Denmolition; and Part 22, Underground Workings - fills,
stockpil es and professional certifications. Part 22,
Under ground Workings - relating to tunnel boring and cut
and cover excavation methods. And Part 23, O and Gas
- relating to snubbing, the emergency escape systens,
riding hoisting equipment, and m scel | aneous itens.

And | note for the record that the
proposed amendnents to Parts 1 and 4 relating to

aval anches, and to Parts 20 and 22 relating to fills and
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stockpiles were taken to the 2007 public hearings.

St akehol ders asked for nore consultation and | want to

t hank anybody who took time to work with us on this.
These amendments were revised and are now being returned
to this public hearing.

St akehol ders were advised of the 2008
proposed amendnments and associ ated expl anatory notes.
The proposed changes were placed on the WrkSaf eBC
website, sent to over 3,500 stakehol ders via E-News,
advertised in the BC Gazette, which the statute
requires, and 17 newspapers. And we've also contacted
the representatives of industry associations and
i nterest groups to encourage their response. And copies
of all of the proposed amendnents are avail able at the
front desk.

If there are written materials that
anybody wants to |l eave with us, you can do that here
with us or at the sign-up desk, and oral and written
subm ssions form part of the public hearing record. The
deadline for receipt is 4:30 p.m on Friday, June 13,
2008.

This is the formal consultation process
and once the hearing process is conplete, the written
and oral subm ssions are analyzed and our Board of

Directors, who are the decision-mking body at
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Wor kSaf eBC, will have access to all the subm ssions
prior to making their final decision.

And | just want to say what a pleasure it
is to be in Cranbrook and to have brought sonme fine
weat her with us. | gather it wasn't quite so nice
earlier in the week.

MR. BARSBY: No, it was still snow ng
out .

THE CHAI R: So I'"'mgoing invite M.
Scott Barsby, who is our first presenter this evening,
and Scott represents Toby Creek Adventures. And | think
you're going to speak to Parts 1 and 4, Aval anches?

MR. BARSBY: Yes.

THE CHAI R: So Scott, come forward here
and maybe -- just because if you speak into the
m crophone, it's easier for our court reporter to record
it.

MR. BARSBY: Al'l right. First time |
have been recorded, that | know of. Thank you.

THE CHAI R: Oh, you're wel cone.

PRESENTATI ON BY SCOTT BARSBY - OWNER/ OPERATOR OF TOBY

CREEK ADVENTURES AND PRESI DENT OF BC COMVERCI AL

SNOWMOBI LE OPERATORS ASSOCI ATI ON

MR. BARSBY: Al'l right. Well, thanks for

having me. And, umm | just travelled from Invernmere
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B.C. is where |I'm actually based out of so it's about
two hours north of us here. So just -- | planned on
being here a little earlier today but it just didn't
work out for me, so now |I'Il tie up a little bit of your
eveni ng.

So anyhow, | represent Toby Creek
Adventures. We do snownobile tours and we have to work
within the aval anche terrain and in that whole field, as
well as | am president of the B.C. Commercial Snowmobile
Operators Association so | wear a couple different hats.

| know Doug Washer spoke with you down in
Victoria on behalf of the Association, but | didn't know
| was going to be able to make this hearing here. So he
spoke about pretty much -- | don't know if he'll speak
on everything I -- we'll see different view, different

angl e, you never know.

So anyhow, umm -- there's M ke.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Hel | o.

MR. BARSBY: So anyhow, 1'll read a bit
of a letter and some comments, and there's -- it's open

for dialogue as well.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: And basically, we fully
support the WeBC' s initiative to increase our standard

of care to inmplenment policies and procedures that wil
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effectively make for a safer and nmore enjoyabl e work
envi ronment .

We are in support of the Canadi an
Aval anche Association handling the training portion of
t he aval anche pl anner. However, during this speedy
process, all parties, including the CAA, have m ssed a
few key issues. And there has been a few key issues
m ssed.

Nunmber 1, 15 years of experience is
absolutely ridiculous, in my mnd, requirements to
become an aval anche pl anner. In all professions -- we
have heavy-duty mechanics, we have electricians, we have
doctors, we have nurses -- all do not require 15 years
of experience. A doctor is nine years of experience in
practical. Previously -- this is before this hearing --
you did not require a 15-year veteran to create active
aval anche plans for the snow industry.

They went from a CAA Level 2 Professional
Member shi p Standard to be able to write aval anche pl ans
to someone having 15 years of experience. \Why the
sudden increase? It's a lot of increase, 15 years in
one profession. MWho's going to handle 15 years of one
single deal? The normal expectancy in most trades,
people go through life in three different trades in

their |ife.
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This is a clear indication that the CAA
will be developing a new professional standard that very
few wi Il be able to fulfill. Not even other countries
such as European nations and the United States have
resorted to such high standards.

| could be wrong here but Wor kSaf eBC
m stakenly instructed the CAA to reclassify an aval anche
pl anner as a professional engineer. This aval anche
pl anner field clearly is not a role of an engineer
status but is more |like a trade or subtrade that should
be laid out in modules, simlar to six-week courses with
practical work experience |ike many other trades.

We believe this current situation of the
bar being set too high was an oversi ght by WbrkSaf eBC
and the anmbitions of the professional devel opnment and
accreditation of the CAA.

We will be faced with finding new students
to replace these aging aval anche pl anners. I f the
standards are set too high that it seens al nost
i mpossible to meet them we will see young, smart m nds
enter other fields of trades which can lead to a stalled
i ndustry.

In the business world, we like to
stream i ne devel opment. These proposed regul ati ons seem

unachi evabl e and are not streamining, it is sinply red
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tape.

| propose that WrkSafeBC have nore
consulting from other sectors and that this amendment
may be stalled for one nmore year so that the CAA or
Wor kSaf eBC clarifies the conmplete plan in whole.

The snownobil e industry has submtted its
own criteria pertaining to aval anche planners of five
years for enmployees and eight years for consultants,
which is enough experience to develop a thorough
aval anche pl an. Five years and ei ght years is a
standard t hroughout the trades and engi neer status.

We also will be requesting that this
amendment be put -- not be put forth until 2010 or '"11
for menbers and enpl oyees which would allow those to
enter into not-yet-designed courses fromthe CAA. The
courses aren't even designed.

By accepting our changes and
recommendations, we will be able to project -- protect,
moni tor and regulate within our own industry. | hope ny

comments are recorded and taken seriously in the future.

THE CHAI R: Thank you, Scott. Can |
just ask -- because when we | ooked at the definition of
a "qualified aval anche planner,” umm and defined it as

a person with a mnimum training and experience

qualifications to be a planner for active aval anche
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safety programs, from your perspective, you' re saying
t hat you think the five- and eight-year designation is
sufficient?

MR. BARSBY: Yes, | do.

THE CHAI R: You do? And based on -- and
can you tell us --

MR. BARSBY: Based on experience. Wy

experience is, umm-- well, we're 12 years in this
i ndustry.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. BARSBY: And working -- | have a

certification |icence, heavy-duty mechanic's licence.

THE CHAI R: Yeah.
MR. BARSBY: | went through five years of
training for that. Five years of active aval anche -- if

you're working in an industry for five years doing one
j ob, you should know what you're doing.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. BARSBY: Ei ght years, you're
definitely going to be a consultant.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght . So right now, if
you're a CAA Level 1, how much experience would you have
to have?

MR. BARSBY: 120 days in the work force.

THE CHAI R: And a CAA 2 woul d be?
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MR. BARSBY: You'd have to do 120 days
again, so that would be 240, plus you'd have to have two
Level 2 professionals sign off on you to get to that
accreditation.

THE CHAI R: And is this -- because it
does seemlike a long time, this issue of 15 years, is
t hat something that's new to the industry?

MR. BARSBY: Yes, brand new.

THE CHAI R: Okay. And so can you say a
little bit more about that for us?

MR. BARSBY: So the 15 years, we made
recommendations to the Canadi an Aval anche Associ ation
during this whole process.

THE CHAI R: Yeah.

MR. BARSBY: They took it and, unmm |

believe what they come back with was an eight-year for

enpl oyees -- eight years for enployees --
THE CHAI R: Experi ence.
MR. BARSBY: -- experience with all the

schooling that backs it up, and then you have to work
for eight years in the field to be able to work as a
pl anner .

THE CHAI R: Um hnm

MR. BARSBY: And then in the consulting

worl d, you have to have 15 years.
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THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. BARSBY: So that, to me personally,
it's too much.

THE CHAI R: And do you know where the
15-year standard canme from?

MR. BARSBY: | believe because they feel
that in the -- in the world of a seasonal operation,
that it was explained to me that the ampount of time that
you work in the aval anche industry is roughly around 100
days of the season

THE CHAI R: Um hmnt?

MR. BARSBY: So you divide that by, well,
15 years, 1500, umm anount of days of operation, it

comes down to about six-and-a-half years of full-time

wor K.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: That's where it comes out
to, six=and-a-half years -- it's actually 6.25 years.

And within those years, that's full-time in one scope,
one field. As a professional engineer, like in an

engi neer status --

THE CHAI R: Yeah.
MR. BARSBY: -- you have multiple fields,
you're going to have nmodul es. In civil engineering,

you're going to touch roads, you're going to touch
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bridges, all kinds of different things, You' re not going
to be focused just on one. | believe they' ve overl ooked
t hat because of not enough information, maybe it was
never brought up. | do know that the geoscientists and
other things were on the table, professional foresters
and that, which really have nothing to do with aval anche
terrain and the world of aval anches. They were being
pressured. They had to get something in there. They
had to |l ook as if they're professional menbers, have the
accreditation, and the senior-nmst guys make the rules.
THE CHAI R: So from your perspective,
the 15-year standard is a way to address that it is a
seasonal activity and the nunbers of days' experience --

you have to factor that in?

MR. BARSBY: | think that's where it canme
from

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: | believe that's where it

came from Umm you know, 15 years in one field of
expertise, experience, is a great amount of info.

THE CHAI R: So we can take that under
advi senment and do a little nore research into what was
i ntended by that.

MR. BARSBY: Definitely. You know, |

think, unm as a professional side of things, you're
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going to be diversified into many fields when you get a
professional standard. A forester is going to have a
multiple of fields he's going to be |ooking at, not just
one per se. | think that's where we're | ooking at how
we got into there.

THE CHAI R: So then the other issue |
wanted to just touch base with you on a little bit --
and before | do that, umm vyou're representing Toby
Creek Adventures and it's kind of helpful for us to hear
a little bit about the kinds of operations that people
actually represent.

MR. BARSBY: Yes.

THE CHAI R: Could you tell us a little
bit about Toby Creek Adventures?

MR. BARSBY: So, basically, it's a
snownobi l e conpany, it's been around for 12 years.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght ?

MR. BARSBY: We have around 50- somewhat
snownobi |l es, produce around 5,000 people a year on these
machi nes. We have an active aval anche plan that we had
to build over the years. W have two Level 2
prof essi onal menbers working --

THE CHAI R: CAA Level 27

MR. BARSBY: Canadi an Aval anche

Associ ati on Level 2 menbers. These i ndi vidual s have
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around anywhere fromfive to eight years, maybe 12
years, maybe even nmore, in around there, under their
belts in the field. They know what they're doing.

THE CHAI R: Yes.

MR. BARSBY: They woul d have to take a
few extra courses, mapping courses, which will be
avai |l abl e.

THE CHAI R: Um hmt?

MR. BARSBY: Getting the mapping courses
fromthe CAA and maybe anot her professional devel opment
course when they have it together.

THE CHAI R: But you don't consider that
to be onerous? That would be a reasonable thing to do?

MR. BARSBY: | think they would be able
to achieve it but we're still under the 15-year cycle.
For my personal Toby Creek conpany, we'll survive
because we have internal. Externally, people out there
in the industry, there's a very small handful. They' re
getting grey, they're getting on with life. Who is
going to fill their seats?

When you come into the work force and you
| ook at different jobs that you're going to be | ooking
at at the trade shows, and you see what's achi evabl e out
there and you see an industry, you want to be an

aval anche pl anner, you're not going to -- why would you
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enrol in a plan that's going to take you 15 years of
wor k before you get your status quo?

So | think the bar is set too high. All

t hey have to do is bring it down, have a set exam | f
you can achieve that exam wi th know edge -- and not
everybody's smart. Some people are very smart and can

do things and are achievers in life. They can write an
exam chall enge an exam and five years, they can have
their certification just like electricians, nurses,
everybody else in this industry, and we can get on with
life and make it all work.

THE CHAI R: And just one other point
with regard to the effective date. We've had sone
presentations that have suggested that any -- there's a
| egal process that we go through when we create an
effective date for a regulation. W go back to our
Board of Directors and they essentially make these
decisions. Then there is a deposit process with the
Regi strar, there is a 90-day effective date. The
soonest we could introduce a regulation would be January
20009. Um it's not a good idea to introduce a new
standard in the m ddle of your season.

MR. BARSBY: No.

THE CHAI R: And we absol utely understand

t hat . So likely following that is the first effective
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date. We had heard fromthe Conmercial Snowboarders
Associ ation that they were recommendi ng, | think, adding
a year.

MR. BARSBY: Yes, we were | ooking at
2010, 2011.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: "11 woul d be suitable to
make some requirements changes and get sone people into
t hese courses and have it suited. '11 would be perfect.

THE CHAI R: That is your view?

MR. BARSBY: That's my view.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: Achi evable -- if you
actually start |ooking at people out there to get these
courses, they're not even avail able. So for different
reasons, there's only one course a year, for mapping
courses and --

You can only do what is available to us
and, umm, quite frankly, they need to | ower the bars.

And | think it's suitable to ask for a small er or | ower

standard. And | think you'll still achieve what our end
goal here is and still get our safety in the workforce
and still be able to develop strong prescriptions for
aval anche pl anni ng. It is not a hard industry to get

into, it is very focused. One field, it's not
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diversified, I think we can do it.
THE CHAI R: Well, we've said a few
times, Scott, it's very interesting to this panel to

actually hear from people who do the work. And |I know
you had a bit of a drive to get here and | just want to
say thank you very much. And you acknow edged your
col | eague M ke. Is there anything else you' d like to
add, M ke?

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Well, | have a
presentation.

THE CHAI R: Oh, you do? Oh, | see that.

Oh, you're M ke Sosnowski --

MR. SOSNOWSKI : That's correct.

THE CHAI R: -- with Prestige Tours?
MR. SOSNOWSKI : That's correct.

THE CHAI R: Well, thank you very much,

M . Barsby, that was an excellent representation, and if
there's any material you want to |leave with us --
THE CHAI R: Yeah, I'I|l |eave nmy notes

here with you and --

THE CHAI R: Sur e.
MR. BARSBY: And then we'll send you our
mat ri x. | believe we've already delivered our matrix to

you once already but we have been in the process and,

you know, we're not a huge sector industry, you know,

LYNN LEE - Official Court Reporter
Cranbrook, BC ~ Ph: 250-489-1800 ~ Fax: 250-489-1873




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

46 M KE SOSNOWSKI
(Prestige Tours)

there's |l ots of sector industries that run the CAA,
we're just an outsider, small --

THE CHAI R: Yes.

MR. BARSBY: So we don't have the votes
and maybe the speaking and everything to convince some
of the people that have been there for a while to change
your Vi ews.

THE CHAI R: Okay, so thanks very nmuch.
That was a great presentation and | thank you for taking
the time for being here this evening. Thanks very much,
M. Barsby.

And Mr. Sosnowski, yes, | should have
realized that when you said "M ke," | was | ooking at
your second name. And again, you're going to speak to
Parts 1 and 4, Aval anches. M. Sosnowski represents
Prestige Tours.

PRESENTATI ON BY M KE SOSNOWSKI - OWNER AND OPERATOR OF

PRESTI GE TOURS:

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Thank you. Thank you
for the opportunity to present regarding the forthcom ng
WCB Wor kSaf eBC policy on aval anche hazard. | do have
some notes.

My name is M ke Sosnowski, |'ve operated
my snownobile tour conpany, Prestige Tours, in and

around the Fernie area for the |ast eight years.
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Previous to that, | was in the forest industry. My dad
was a | ogger so, consequently, | was. | built a sawm ||
company in southern Al berta, although |I've al ways
resided in Fernie. That's a nice place to grow up and
live and raise a fam|ly.

THE CHAI R: | have a snowboardi ng son,
have to admt.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : And | built a sawm ||
with 150 people working for me for 18 years so | cane
out of industry. And it was a nice break to come into
t he snowmobil e side and very many things apply. And
|'ve represented nmy forest conmpany in front of Alberta
Conmpensation on different policies and |I've seen the
val ue of Conpensation policies and safety policies, and
|'ve seen the value over the years inmprove my business.

| welcome the intent of this proposed
policy and believe that written aval anche plans with the
Best Practices and Procedures section will enhance the
safety of not only my workers but also ny clients.

| presently practice an aval anche
avoi dance plan but | ook forward to updating it. It is
written but it's not as good as | know we're going to
have.

| would like to mention that |'ve never

had an aval anche-rel ated incident or close call in ny
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busi ness. And | wish | could say that for nyself
personally. As a member of the B.C. Conmerci al
Snownobi |l e Operators Association, | have been invol ved
in the devel opnent of this plan submtted by them and I
believe the plan submtted by themis very good and nost
rel evant to the snownobile industry.

My conpany, operates in 75 per cent non-
aval anche terrain. It's nostly half-day tours. Umm
it's on a power line, some roads in the mddle of a
vall ey, and so it's nmostly non-aval anche. About 15 per
cent of my terrain is sinple terrain and 10 per cent is
challenging terrain, and this is based on the Parks
Canada terrain matri Xx. | have no conplex terrain in ny
area that | operate in. There's lots in Fernie but I
don't operate in it.

You can't take clients in places that we
consi der conmpl ex terrain. Li ke, these people, for the
most part, umm never -- if they've ever rode a
snownobile, it's been not very much and so they're --
you have to keep --

THE CHAI R: They' re rooki es.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : They' re rookies. So
some industry insight of my own. And over the | ast
ei ght years, | have had two guides that have stayed

enpl oyed for the last four years with me. And | speak
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to this to make you aware that it's hard to find
pr of essi onal snowmobil e gui des.

Even though | pay a good wage at $20 an
hour for experienced guides, the seasonal nature of the
busi ness and the fact that after a few years the rigors
of snowmobil e guiding tend to have guides | ooking for
new careers. So it's hard to keep -- just as Scott said
-- building on that, too. It's hard to find and keep
t hese peopl e. | mean, snownmobile guiding is -- | got
one young fella that's going to -- you know, my -- ny --
| have -- the two guides |I'm speaking of, one's
56-years-old, retired fellow, great guy, perfect
sem -retirement type of job for him it's all good, he's
never going to be an aval anche pl anner. He snownobil ed
for probably 30 years, though, so he's never going to
get any clients in a wreck, either, so he's that guy.

The other fellow is a young fella, he's a
snowboard and ski instructor and he has his Level 1, and
he's the guy that's going to follow through with the
company for years and years. But for himto attain a
professional level in 15 years? Like, we've talked
about this, me and him and he's just going "This is" --

THE CHAI R: Um hmm

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Li ke, it's discouraging.

You see the I ook on his face. He wants to be sonebody
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in the outdoor industry but you could see the | ook,
li ke, "15 years? |1'm 23." He's doing the math.
Li ke --

THE CHAI R: | can hardly imagine it.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : | can't either. Also --
so I"'mnot -- | have a short presentation. Also the
time we need to -- this is one reason that the present
CAA qualifications for an aval anche planner of 15 years,
it's going to be unattainable by our industry. The
recommended ei ght years for consultant and five years
for an enployee is way nore in line with attainability
of our sector.

Now, | have a Class 1 aval anche -- the
one, Jarrett, is a Class 1. Scott's lucky, he has two
Cl ass 2. He's been in business 12 years and he's in
more aval anche terrain so he's had to build a better
pl an than | have.

Now, his eight-year fella, if that was the
standard, could come and consult for me on my first
pl an. | don't know where we're going to get a 15-year
guy. | know of two in B.C. and they're both basically
not avail abl e. So start thinking about what is really
goi ng to happen in the real world here.

|, again, would Iike to inpress upon you

that -- oh, also, the tinme we need to come up to full
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compliance for a new policy as proposed would have to
be, in my opinion, three years. W need tinme to devel op

pl ans for our areas including mapping.

Now, that will take, depending on
terrain -- | got 33,000 hectares in my -- 33,000
hectares, it's a huge area. |'d have to do mappi ng and

map all the aval anche terrain. Now, that's going to
take me two years to do that. It's, like, | don't have
the resources to go out and hire a bunch of people and
t hey have to be qualified as a consultant to help ne
with some of this mapping.

Li ke, 1'Il identify the areas and | need a
consultant to come and | ook and go, "Yep, it's a" --
"Yeah, no, that's conplex,” or -- or "It's not conplex,"
or "It's sinple.” So it's just going to take a couple
years to do that.

And it's going to take one to two years to
have our guides take the necessary but
yet-to-be-devel oped courses because they're not
devel oped yet. And |I'd hate to see a rush to devel op
courses that are just there to nebul ous stuff, right,
just to have this course. These courses have to be
meani ngf ul .

Again, | would like to press upon you that

we are an industry that does not require gravity for our
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product, umm totally opposite to any ski-rel ated

i ndustries. We absolutely don't need gravity for our

product. Our product is touring. It's -- if you're a
snownobi |l er, you'd understand it. |f you've never been
snownmobiling, | invite you to come snownobiling. I
mean, |'d be happy to take you out. It's a beauti ful

way to see the backcountry for people that, you know --
even people that cross-country ski.

Most backcountry ski tours are now
snownobi l ers. They've bought an old junker to get to
t he backcountry. Now t hey got really good sleds to go
and enj oy snownobili ng. So they're not in the industry
but I'"m just giving you that exanple.

This should be highly consi dered when
deci ding what the policy will demand of the snownobile
i ndustry. We should not broad-brush this policy. W're

not the heli-ski guys. W're not the cat-ski guys. W

aren't even there. That's complex terrain. | would
never take a client there. It's just -- and nobody
woul d.

Like, I think in the matrix -- or the

graph that was shown by the B.C. Commercial Snownobil e
Operators Association, four per cent of the total area
that's operated by the snownobiling industry -- that's

everybody in B.C. -- only four per cent is conplex
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terrain. | don't have that graph with me but |'m sure

it's available to you 'cause it was in our presentation.

THE CHAI R: Yes.
MR. SOSNOWSKI : As the premer's mandate
is to double tourism | caution that this new policy be

attainable by all or this goal may not be realized.
We're a growi ng industry, everybody, the backcountry, us
peopl e and, you know, that's all going to that vision.

And finally, 1'd like to speak to anot her
i ssue that doesn't relate directly to WorkSaf eBC policy
initiatives. It may hold some relevance to the current
CAA gui del i nes. | hope |I'm not out of line here but |
wanted to say this to you.

' ve worked on the Southern Rocky Mountain
Management Plan for the |ast eight years. The Southern
Rocky Mount ain Management Plan takes in fromthe U. S.
border up the Alberta border, umm about 60 ml|es north
of the U.S. border and across into the Elk Valley. It's
a huge area of land including the Flathead drainage, and
you probably all heard about the Flathead -- so it's in
this area. Um, it needed a | and-use pl an. | was
instrumental in getting that |and-use plan started
because | seen the need.

Through this | and-use plan, 1've | earned

to respect the culture of those groups that are
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non- mot ori zed. It was a real give and take. Ei ght
years ago, | could ride anywhere | wanted and now | can
only ride about 60 per cent of where | used to on
snownobil es. ATV's, we're down to about 30 per cent.
So we gave up a | ot.

| say | respect because |'ve seen the
t hings that they do, the way they think and the ends
they will go to to reduce the amount of nmotorized
traffic in the backcountry. Because this culture is in
control of the CAA, | suspect that some of the reason
for the unattainable guideline for a planner consultant
and pl anner enpl oyee may be to acconmplish the mandate of
their culture.

This is why we, as a snownobiling
i ndustry, must be able to have our own people trained
for our industry. W would gladly use the CAA for their
training courses, we respect their training courses, but
we must not be put in a position where their culture can
dictate or mandate something that can be detrinmental to
our industry.

In closing, | would again thank you and
| ook forward to working with you as we get this new
policy under way.

THE CHAI R: So thank you very much,

M ke. And again, | wonder if | could ask you a quick
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coupl e of questions? Umm one of the things | was just
jotting down in my notes to nyself as you were speaking
was, umm should there be a need to find some additional
time to make the desire for safety work in the
snownobi ling industry, would it -- that was ny
guestion -- would it be possible for this industry,
which | think | heard that this association's a fairly
fledgling association, it's a little newer.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Yes, three years, three

or four years old.

THE CHAI R: Yeah, would it be possible
for the snownobiling industry, the Association -- that
was my question and maybe you've answered it but | want
to ask it explicitly -- to work with the CAA and

Wor kSaf eBC to devel op appropriate levels of training and
experience relative to non-conmplex terrain?

MR. SOSNOWSKI : That's exactly what
we' ve asked for in our Association. And we've worked
with the CAA. Li ke, the CAA has good courses. They are

prof essi onal peopl e. So in the aval anche busi ness as

such, | spoke to the culture, not to the CAA business.
THE CHAI R: Um hmm
MR. SOSNOWSKI : | respect their courses,

| think they're good courses and, umm you gotta

remenmber that 15 years came out of a big CAA annual
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meeti ng.
THE CHAI R: Yes, relative to highly

compl ex terrain.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : That's correct. So, but
the other thing you have to recogni ze, eight years, |'ve
never had an aval anche incident or close call. In the
Province of B.C., there has been one aval anche -- one

gui de, who wasn't a |egal guide, wasn't a professiona
gui de, he was operating illegally, and he has been hurt
by -- I think it was actually a fatality. But out of
the rest of everybody, there hasn't been one incident

t hat a guide has been hurt in the |ast dozen years.

Scott does 5,000 a year, | do a thousand a
year, Blackcomb's doing 10,000 a year, Bl ackcomb-
Whi stl er area.

THE CHAI R: Um hmm

MR. SOSNOWSKI : That many clients and no
injuries, no incidents.

THE CHAI R: No, | got you.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : So for us to ask for
time so we can get on board and -- | gotta map of this
country, it's not just "go do this.” | can only do it
in the wintertinme. You can't map in the sumer, | mean,
it's bush like this.

THE CHAI R: You have to do it -- yeah
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So Scott -- | mean, M ke, feel free to speak to this as
wel | . So in your view, is it your view that the CAA
woul d be receptive to that? Wuld they be willing to

work with the Association to devel op an approach that is
more relevant to your industry?

MR. SOSNOWSKI : We have asked the CAA to
reduce the guideline for our industry. They have
refused flatly. So now it's up to you people to help to
work with us. We have asked them

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : We have met with them

and asked them we have been turned down --

THE CHAI R: Okay.
MR. SOSNOWSKI : -- at their meeting.
THE CHAI R: So that's what |'"mreally

testing for because when you're trying to find a
solution to a particular segnment of an industry's
concern, you have to find sonme ways to bring the parties
together to see whether or not something is doable with
it.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : Well, we're willing to
take their courses. W respect their courses. W take
t hem now.

THE CHAI R: Okay.

MR. BARSBY: We're willing to challenge
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58 M KE SOSNOWSKI
(Prestige Tours)

t he exam Every industry has a final exam

THE CHAI R: Ri ght .

MR. BARSBY: Nursi ng does, everybody.
Chal | enge the final exam you have the amount of days in
the field, let's challenge it. Then we're there.

THE CHAI R: Ri ght, okay. One of the
reasons why we try to get out to some other communities
than simply the Lower Mainland is to try to at | east be
in communities where people who are doing the work we
have a chance to hear fromthem So |I thank you very
much for your presentations. | want to make sure that
you feel that you have been conpletely heard and
under st ood and that you don't have anything else to add.

MR. BARSBY: Tomorrow norning, we wil
e-mail you the matrix that we proposed to the CAA of the
Level 5 and all the criterias, although the only thing
different is the anount of years of experience.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : That's all. Everyt hi ng
el se we agree. Like, and it's a big step for us as a --
li ke, as an industry that hasn't had a policy --

THE CHAI R: Yeah.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : -- to go to this
standard of policy, and we're only asking three years.

Li ke, | have been -- we've done policies in Alberta --

and | haven't been involved in B.C. a lot so | refer to
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59 Pr oceedi ngs

Al berta and it's the forest industry, but I remember
when there's been changes of policy and the sawmIls are

j ust aghast and they were given five years --

THE CHAI R: To get there.

MR. SOSNOWSKI : -- to implement the
policy. And so first year, it's |like you have to be
mappi ng. You gotta remenmber, we're still operating. | f

you do anything else, we won't be operating. And it's
t hat si nmpl e. It could take this industry down.

THE CHAI R: Okay. That's a very
el oquent presentation and | really do thank both of you
for taking the time and the trouble to be here this
eveni ng. It was well worth us being here to hear from
you.

We don't have any other speakers
regi stered for the evening and so ny practice is to
adjourn for a period of time and stick around just in
case anybody el se wants to be heard. But | would like
to thank you very much, both of you, for taking the time
to be with us.

( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED)

( PROCEEDI NGS RECONVENED)

THE CHAI R: So there being no other
presenters to have registered for this evening' s session

of the public hearings, no other menbers of the public
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who have indicated an interest in presenting to the

panel, | am adjourning the public hearings in Cranbrook.
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( PROCEEDI NGS CONCLUDED AT 8:15 P. M)
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and the same is a true and correct and
conpl ete transcript of said proceedings to the
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